

Shire of Menzies

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES

SECTION 7.1A LGA 1995

Committee Brief:

- 1. Provide guidance and assistance to the local government
 - a) as to the carrying out of its functions in relation to audits carried out under Part 7 of the Act; and
 - b) as to the development of a process to be used to select and appoint a person to be an auditor; and
- 2. May provide guidance and assistance to the local government as to
 - a) matters to be audited; and
 - b) the scope of audits; and
 - c) its functions under Part 6 of the Act; and
 - d) the carrying out of its functions relating to other audits and other matters related to financial management; and
- 3. Is to review a report given to it by the CEO under Regulation 17(3) (the CEO's report) and is to
 - a) report to the Council the results of that review; and
 - b) give a copy of the CEO's report to the Council.

A Meeting of the Audit and Risk Committee was held in the Council Chambers, 124 Shenton Street, Menzies WA 6436, at 10.00am on Thursday,/27 February 2025.

Peter Bentley

Acting Chief Executive Officer

Resolution Numbers ARC-69 to ARC-73

Committee Members:

Cr P Warner, Cr S Sudhir and Cr A Tucker (Council Resolution-163/23)

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1	DECLARATION OF OPENING	3
2	ANNOUNCEMENT OF VISITORS	3
3	RECORD OF ATTENDANCE	3
4	DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST	3
5	CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES	3
6	REPORTS OF OFFICERS	4
	6.1 Mid-Year Budget Review Financial Year 2024/25	4
	6.2 Compliance Audit Return 2024	17
7	INFORMATION REPORTS	33
8	MOTIONS OF WHICH PREVIOUS NOTICE HAS BEEN GIVEN	33
9	NEW BUSINESS OF AN URGENT NATURE	34
	9.1 Risk Management Update - February 2025	37
10	NEXT MEETING	42
11	CLOSURE OF MEETING	42

1 DECLARATION OF OPENING

The Presiding Member declared the meeting open at 10.04am.

2 ANNOUNCEMENT OF VISITORS

Nil

3 RECORD OF ATTENDANCE

Councillors: Cr P Warner, Presiding Member

Cr A Tucker

Staff: Mr P Bentley, Acting Chief Executive Officer

Ms K Van Kuyl, Chief Financial Officer

Ms M Yulo-Uy, Executive Officer (Minutes)

Apology: Cr S Sudhir, Deputy Presiding Member

4 DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

Nil

5 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

OFFICER RECOMMENDATION/COMMITTEE DECISION:

Committee Resolution Number:		ARC-69		
Moved:	Cr ATucker	Seconded:	Cr P Warner	
That the Minutes of the Audit and Risk Committee meeting held on 31 October 2024 be confirmed as a true and correct record.				

Carried 2 / 0

For: Cr P Warner and Cr A Tucker

Against: Nil

6 REPORTS OF OFFICERS

6.1	Mid-Year Budget	t Review Financial Year 2024/25		
LOCATION		Not Applicable		
APPLICANT		Internal		
DOCUMEN	T REF	NAM1422		
DATE OF R	EPORT	07 February 2025		
AUTHOR		Chief Financial Officer, Kristy Van Kuyl		
RESPONSIBLE OFFICER		Acting Chief Executive Officer, Peter Bentley		
OFFICER DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST		Nil		
ATTACHMENT		1. 2024/25- Budget Review [6.1.1 - 8 pages]		

SUMMARY:

To consider the Shire of Menzies' financial position as at 31 December 2024 and performance for the period 1 July 2024 to 31 December 2024 in relation to the adopted Annual Budget and projections estimated for the remainder of the Financial Year (FY).

BACKGROUND:

The budget review has been prepared to include information required by the *Local Government Act* 1995, *Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations* 1996 and Australian Accounting Standards. The report for the period 1 July 2024 to 31 December 2024 shown in the attachment has been prepared incorporating year to date budget variations and forecasts to 30 June 2025 and is presented for the Council's consideration.

Consideration of the status of various projects and programs was undertaken to ensure any anticipated variances were captured within the review document where possible.

The material variance levels which have been reported for the budget review are based upon management judgement where explanations are considered appropriate.

COMMENT:

The budget review report includes at 'Note 4' in the attachment, a summary of predicted variances by nature and type activities contained within the statement of budget review.

Features of the budget review include:

The increase	n operating revenue is primarily determined by an (\$121,	088)
increase in dire	ct grants from Main Roads WA, despite a decrease in	
funding from	the Financial Assistance Grants Scheme (FAGS).	

Additionally, there is a decrease in profit from asset disposals, as the CEO vehicle replacement is no longer required.	
The increase in operating revenue is driven by an increase in fees and charges, interest revenue, and other revenue, including GROH rental fees, private works income, investment interest, and the Anglo Gold support contribution. Additionally, the acquisition of a new asset at 18-28 Brown Street.	\$135,759
Increase the operating expenditure considered across all reporting programs, including adjustments to reclassify expenditures where necessary. This includes the increase of employee costs, housing, parks and gardens, materials and contracts, consultant fees, legal fees, and Tjuntjuntjara community programs and events.	(\$217,414)
Increase in the non-cash amount, as the anticipated profit from asset disposal is no longer applicable.	\$9,333
The increase in investment activities is associated with the revenue generated from the LRCI grant, alongside a decrease in the allocation designated for the replacement of the CEO's vehicle,	\$131,482
The decrease in investing activities is due to adjustments in various capital building projects, including the Town Hall, fencing at Walsh Street, the acquisition of a new asset at 18-28 Brown Street, the caravan park, and infrastructure capital projects such as the TV and radio broadcasting equipment upgrade, the Skatepark, and the completion of sealing Kensington Street.	\$201,500
Reduction in transfer from reserve for capital projects; e.g CEO vehicle, and Town Hall capital works.	(\$50,020)
Variance in surplus or deficit at the start of the financial year upon receive of audited annual financial statement	\$89,552

Following completion of the budget review and to properly consider the impact of estimated projections at 30 June 2025, some items have been identified as requiring a budget amendment to properly account for these variances where appropriate. Required budget amendments which are proposed have been included in 'Note 4' of the attached budget review document for information and also presented as a separate recommendation to the budget review for the Council consideration.

Further budget amendments may be required to be presented to the Council at future meetings as projects are continually reviewed and monitored.

CONSULTATION:

Moore Australia, consultants

STATUTORY AUTHORITY:

Local Government Act 1995 Section 6.8(1) (b) provides that expenditure can be incurred when not included in the annual budget provided it is authorised in advance by resolution (absolute majority required).

Regulation 33A of the *Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations* 1996 requires:

- (1) Between 1 January and the last day of February in each financial year a local government is to carry out a review of its annual budget for that year.
- (2A) The review of an annual budget for a financial year must
 - (a) consider the local government's financial performance in the period beginning on 1 July and ending no earlier than 31 December in that financial year; and
 - (b) consider the local government's financial position as at the date of the review; and
 - (c) review the outcomes for the end of that financial year that are forecast in the budget; and
 - (d) include the following -
 - (i) the annual budget adopted by the local government;
 - (ii) an update of each of the estimates included in the annual budget;
 - (iii) the actual amounts of expenditures, revenue and income as the date of the review;
 - (iv) adjacent to each item in the annual budget adopted by the local government that states an amount, the estimated end of year amount for for the item.
- (2) The review of an annual budget for a financial year must be submitted to the council on or before 31 March in that financial year.
- (3) A Council is to consider a review submitted to it and is to determine* whether to adopt the review, any parts of the review or any recommendation made in the review.

 *Absolute majority required.
- (4) Within 14 days after a council has made a determination, a copy of the review and determination is to be provided to the Department.

Section 6.8(1) (b) of the *Local Government Act 1995* provides that expenditure can be incurred when not included in the annual budget provided it is authorised in advance by resolution (absolute majority required).

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:

There are no known policy implications arising from this report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:

Authorisation of expenditure through budget amendments is recommended. Other specific financial implications are outlined in the body of this report.

RISK ASSESSMENT:

Risk Statement	Level of Risk	Risk Mitigation Strategy
This item has been evaluated against the Shire of Menzies' Risk Management Strategy and Risk	The perceived level of risk is high prior to	Adoption of recommendations as presented will reduce the
Assessment Matrix	treatment	risk to low

STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS:

The Shire's Strategic Community Plan 2021-2031 outlines the following Outcome and Strategy:

Outcome

4.2 An efficient and effective organisation.

Strategy

4.2.1 Maintain a high level of corporate governance, responsibility and accountability.

Accordingly, the officer's recommendation aligns with the Strategic Community Plan.

VOTING REQUIREMENTS:

Simple Majority

OFFICER RECOMMENDATION/COMMITTEE DECISION:

Committee Resolution Number:			ARC-70	
Moved:	Cr A Tucker	Seconded:	Cr P Warner	
That it be a recommendation to the Council:				
That:				

- 1. The attached Mid-year Budget Review of Financial Year 2024/2025 be adopted
- 2. The Budget amendments to the adopted Annual Budget of Financial Year 2024/2025, as contained in the attached 'Note 4' of the Mid-year Budget Review of Financial Year 2024/2025 be adopted.

Carried	2/0
Garrica	

For: Cr P Warner and Cr A Tucker

Against: Nil

SHIRE OF MENZIES

BUDGET REVIEW REPORT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1995
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT) REGULATIONS 1996

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Statement of Budget Review 2		
Note 1	Basis of Preparation	3
Note 2	Summary Graphs - Budget Review	4
Note 3	Net Current Funding Position	5
Note 4	Predicted Variances / Future Budget Amendments	7

SHIRE OF MENZIES STATEMENT OF BUDGET REVIEW FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

	_	ьu	uget v Actual				
			Updated		Estimated		
			Budget		Year at End	Predicted	
		Adopted	Estimates	Year to Date	Amount	Variance	
	Note	Budget	(a)	Actual	(b)	(b) - (a)	
OPERATING ACTIVITIES	-	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	
Revenue from operating activities		Ψ	Ψ	Ψ	Ψ	Ψ	
General rates		4.004.750	4 004 750	4 004 750	4 604 750	0	
		4,621,750	4,621,750	4,621,750	4,621,750	0	
Rates excluding general rates		183,440	183,440	37,405	183,440	0	
Grants, subsidies and contributions	4.1	777,381	777,381	485,806	665,626	(111,755)	•
Fees and charges	4.2	245,805	245,805	172,231	271,600	25,795	A
Interest revenue	4.3	281,000	281,000	156,294	319,000	38,000	_
Other revenue	4.4	1,275,361	1,275,361	469,941	1,347,325	71,964	A
Profit on asset disposals	4.5	127,145	127,145	0	117,812	(9,333)	•
·	_	7,511,882	7,511,882	5,943,427	7,526,553	14.671	
Expenditure from operating activities		7,011,002	.,0,002	0,010,121	1,020,000	,	
Employee costs	4.6	(2.724.600)	(0.704.600)	(4.400.450)	(2,855,603)	(400.044)	•
		(2,731,689)	(2,731,689)	(1,183,152)		(123,914)	Ž
Materials and contracts	4.7	(4,556,500)	(4,556,500)	(1,986,466)	(4,639,500)	(83,000)	•
Utility charges		(122,800)	(122,800)	(58,720)	(122,800)	0	
Depreciation		(2,387,402)	(2,387,402)	(982,345)	(2,387,402)	0	
Finance costs		(21,210)	(21,210)	(7,235)	(21,210)	0	
Insurance		(164,383)	(164,383)	(164,384)	(164,383)	0	
Other expenditure	4.8	(533,601)	(533,601)	(112,521)	(544,101)	(10,500)	•
•	_	(10,517,585)	(10,517,585)	(4,494,823)	(10,734,999)	(217,414)	
		(10,011,000)	(10,011,000)	(4,404,020)	(10,704,000)	(217,414)	
Non-cash amounts excluded from operating activities	4.9	2,260,257	2,260,257	982,345	2,269,590	9,333	A
Amount attributable to operating activities	_	(745,446)	(745,446)	2,430,949	(938,856)	(193,410)	
INVESTING ACTIVITIES							
Inflows from investing activities							
Capital grants, subsidies and contributions	4.10	3,884,081	3,970,849	757,202	4,162,331	191,482	A
Proceeds from disposal of assets	4.11	221,000	221,000	0	161,000	(60,000)	•
•	_	4,105,081	4,191,849	757,202	4,323,331	131,482	
Outflows from investing activities		1,100,001	.,,	,202	1,020,001	.0.,.02	
Purchase of land and buildings	4.12	(2.640.444)	(2 562 272)	(4.400.006)	(3,365,873)	100 500	A
Purchase of plant and equipment		(3,649,141)	(3,562,373)	(1,128,326)		196,500	
	4.13	(1,189,000)	(1,189,000)	(266,654)	(1,074,000)	115,000	<u> </u>
Purchase and construction of infrastructure-roads	4.14	(4,832,833)	(4,832,833)	(872,011)	(4,842,833)	(10,000)	\blacksquare
Purchase and construction of infrastructure-other	4.15	(1,597,835)	(1,774,403)	(700,795)	(1,874,403)	(100,000)	\blacksquare
		(11,268,809)	(11,358,609)	(2,967,786)	(11,157,109)	201,500	
Amount attributable to investing activities	_	(7,163,728)	(7,166,760)	(2,210,584)	(6,833,778)	332,982	
FINANCING ACTIVITIES							
Cash inflows from financing activities							
Proceeds from new borrowings		650,000	650,000	650,000	650,000	0	
Transfers from reserve accounts	4.16	4,034,624	4,034,624	0	3,904,624	(130,000)	\blacksquare
		4,684,624	4,684,624	650,000	4,554,624	(130,000)	
Cash outflows from financing activities							
Repayment of borrowings		(44,829)	(44,829)	(14,778)	(44,829)	0	
Transfers to reserve accounts	4.17	(2,644,588)	(2,644,588)	(68,352)	(2,564,608)	79,980	A
	-	(2,689,417)	(2,689,417)	(83,130)	(2,609,437)	79,980	_
Amount attributable to financing activities	_	1,995,207	1,995,207	566,870	1,945,187	(50,020)	
attibutuble to intanellig activities		1,330,207	1,000,201	300,070	1,040,107	(50,020)	
MOVEMENT IN SURPLUS OR DEFICIT							
Surplus or deficit at the start of the financial year		5,913,967	5,827,447	5,827,447	5,827,447	0	
Amount attributable to operating activities		(745,446)	(745,446)	2,430,949	(938,856)	(193,410)	
Amount attributable to investing activities		(7,163,728)	(7,166,760)	(2,210,584)	(6,833,778)	332,982	
Amount attributable to financing activities		1,995,207	1,995,207	566,870	1,945,187	(50,020)	
Surplus or deficit after imposition of general rates	3(a),4.18	0	(89,552)	6,614,682	0	89,552	A
Samples of action and imposition of goneral rates	٥(۵),٦.١٥	v	(00,002)	5,517,002		30,002	_

Budget v Actual

SHIRE OF MENZIES
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE BUDGET REVIEW REPORT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION

This budget review has been prepared in accordance with the *Local Government Act 1995* and accompanying regulations.

Local Government Act 1995 requirements

Section 6.4(2) of the Local Government Act 1995 read with the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996, prescribe that the budget review be prepared in accordance with the Local Government Act 1995 and, to the extent that they are not inconsistent with the Act, the Australian Accounting Standards. The Australian Accounting Standards (as they apply to local governments and not-for-profit entities) and Interpretations of the Australian Accounting Standards Board were applied where no inconsistencies exist.

The Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996 specify that vested land is a right-of-use asset to be measured at cost, and is considered a zero cost concessionary lease. All right-of-use assets under zero cost concessionary leases are measured at zero cost rather than at fair value, except for vested improvements on concessionary land leases such as roads, buildings or other infrastructure which continue to be reported at fair value, as opposed to the vested land which is measured at zero cost. The measurement of vested improvements at fair value is a departure from AASB 16 Leases which would have required the Shire of Menzies to measure any vested improvements at zero cost.

Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996, regulation 33A prescribes contents of the budget review.

Accounting policies which have been adopted in the preparation of this budget review have been consistently applied unless stated otherwise. Except for cash flow and statement of financial activity, the budget review has been prepared on the accrual basis and is based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and liabilities.

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT REPORTING ENTITY

All funds through which the Shire of Menzies controls resources to carry on its functions have been included in the financial statements forming part of this financial report.

All monies held in the Trust Fund are excluded from the financial statements.

Judgements and estimates

The preparation of a financial report in conformity with Australian Accounting Standards requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that effect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors believed to be reasonable under the circumstances; the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The balances, transactions and disclosures impacted by accounting estimates are as follows:

- · estimated fair value of certain financial assets
- · impairment of financial assets
- estimation of fair values of land and buildings, infrastructure and investment property
- · estimation uncertainties made in relation to lease accounting
- · estimation of fair values of provisions

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES

Significant accounting policies utilised in the preparation of these statements are as described within the 2024-25 Annual Budget. Please refer to the adopted budget document for details of these policies.

SHIRE OF MENZIES SUMMARY GRAPHS - BUDGET REVIEW FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

2. SUMMARY GRAPHS - BUDGET REVIEW



This information is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements and notes

SHIRE OF MENZIES NOTES TO THE BUDGET REVIEW REPORT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

3 NET CURRENT FUNDING POSTION EXPLANATION OF DIFFERENCE IN NET CURRENT ASSETS AND SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)

		Audited Actual	Adopted Budget	Updated Budget Estimates	Year to Date Actual	Estimated Year at End Amount
(a)	Composition of estimated net current assets	30 June 2024	30 June 2025	30 June 2025	31 December 2024	30 June 2025
		\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
	Current assets					
	Cash and cash equivalents	19,260,716	10,914,134	12,214,618	19,440,157	10,964,154
	Trade and other receivables	932,888	994,984	994,984	1,375,419	994,984
	Inventories	11,331	17,234	17,234	11,331	17,234
	Other assets	43,098	0	0	0	0
	Contract assets	302,771	0	0	7,716	0
		20,550,804	11,926,352	13,226,836	20,834,623	11,976,372
	Less: current liabilities					
	Trade and other payables	(312,395)	(178,772)	(178,772)	(105,497)	(178,772)
	Contract liabilities	(1,273,346)	0	0	(908,475)	0
	Borrowings	0	(62,136)	(62,136)	(14,778)	(62,136)
	Employee related provisions	(148,022)	(161,180)	(161,180)	(148,022)	(161,180)
		(1,733,763)	(402,088)	(402,088)	(1,176,772)	(402,088)
	Net current assets	18,817,041	11,524,264	12,824,748	19,657,851	11,574,284
	Less: Total adjustments to net current assets	(12,989,594)	(11,524,264)	(11,524,264)	(13,043,169)	(11,574,284)
	Closing funding surplus / (deficit)	5,827,447	0	1,300,484	6,614,682	0

The following current assets and liabilities have been excluded from the net current assets used in the Statement of Financial Activity in accordance with Financial Management Regulation 32 to agree to the surplus/(deficit) after imposition of general rates.

Adjustments to n	et current assets
Less: Reserve acc	counts
Add: Current liabili	ties not expected to be cleared at end of year
 Current portion 	n of borrowings

- 6	Employee ben	efit	pro	visions	
otal	adjustments	to	net	current	assets

Audited Actual 30 June 2024	Adopted Budget 30 June 2025	Updated Budget Estimates 30 June 2025	Year to Date Actual 31 December 2024	Estimated Year at End Amount 30 June 2025
\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
(13,137,616)	(11,747,580)	(11,747,580)	(13,205,969)	(11,797,600)
0	62,136	62,136	14,778	62,136
148,022	161,180	161,180	148,022	161,180
(12,989,594)	(11,524,264)	(11,524,264)	(13,043,169)	(11,574,284)

Updated Budget

(c) Non-cash amounts excluded from operating activities

from operating activities within the Statement of Financial Activity in accordance with Financial Management Regulation 32.

30 June 2024	30 June 2025	30 June 2025	31 December 2024	30 June 2025
\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
(32,522)	(127,145)	(127,145)	0	(117,812)
(13,158)	0	0	0	0
(1,342)	0	0	0	0
88,160	0	0	0	0
1,920,400	2,387,402	2,387,402	982,345	2,387,402
(1,035)	0	0	0	0
22,544	0	0	0	0
1,983,047	2,260,257	2,260,257	982,345	2,269,590
	30 June 2024 \$ (32,522) (13,158) (1,342) 88,160 1,920,400 (1,035) 22,544	30 June 2024 30 June 2025 \$ \$ (127,145) (13,158) 0 (1,342) 0 88,160 0 1,920,400 2,387,402 (1,035) 0 22,544 0	30 June 2024 30 June 2025 30 June 2025 \$ \$ \$ (32,522) (127,145) (127,145) (13,158) 0 0 (1,342) 0 0 88,160 0 0 1,920,400 2,387,402 2,387,402 (1,035) 0 0 22,544 0 0	30 June 2024 30 June 2025 31 December 2024 \$ \$ \$ \$ (32,522) (127,145) (127,145) 0 (13,158) 0 0 0 (1,342) 0 0 0 88,160 0 0 0 1,920,400 2,387,402 2,387,402 982,345 (1,035) 0 0 0 0 0 22,544 0 0 0



Estimated Year at

SHIRE OF MENZIES NOTES TO THE BUDGET REVIEW REPORT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

3 COMMENTS/NOTES - NET CURRENT FUNDING POSITION (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, cash at bank, deposits available on demand with banks, other short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value and bank overdrafts.

Bank overdrafts are shown as short term borrowings in current liabilities.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST

The Shire of Menzies classifies financial assets at amortised cost if both of the following criteria are met:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cashflows, and
- the contractual terms give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade and other receivables include amounts due from ratepayers for unpaid rates and service charges and other amounts due from third parties for grants, contributions, reimbursements, and goods sold and services performed in the ordinary course of business.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional, unless they contain significant financing components, when they are recognised at fair value.

Trade receivables are held with the objective to collect the contractual cashflows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Due to the short term nature of current receivables, their carrying amount is considered to be the same as their fair value. Non-current receivables are indexed to inflation, any difference between the face value and fair value is considered immaterial.

The Shire of Menzies applies the AASB 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses using a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, rates receivable are separated from other trade receivables due to the difference in payment terms and security for rates receivable.

INVENTORIES

General

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

CONTRACT ASSETS

Contract assets primarily relate to the Shire of Menzies's right to . consideration for work completed but not billed at the end of the period.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Contract liabilities represent the Shire of Menzies's obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Shire of Menzies has received consideration from the customer.

Contract liabilities represent obligations which are not yet satisfied. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the performance obligations in the contract are satisfied.

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Shire of Menzies has a present legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably measured.

Provisions are measured using the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period.

CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT CLASSIFICATION

An asset or liability is classified as current if it is expected to be settled within the next 12 months, being the Shire of Menzies's operational cycle. In the case of liabilities where the Shire of Menzies does not have the unconditional right to defer settlement beyond 12 months, such as vested long service leave, the liability is classified as current even if not expected to be settled within the next 12 months. Inventories held for trading are classified as current or non-current based on the Shire of Menzies's intentions to release for sale.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Shire of Menzies prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid and arise when the Shire of Menzies becomes obliged to make future payments in respect of the purchase of these goods and services. The amounts are unsecured, are recognised as a current liability and are normally paid within 30 days of recognition. The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

PREPAID RATES

Prepaid rates are, until the taxable event has occurred (start of the next financial year), refundable at the request of the ratepayer. Rates received in advance are initially recognised as a financial liability. When the taxable event occurs, the financial liability is extinguished and the Shire of Menzies recognises revenue for the prepaid rates that have not been refunded.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Short-Term Employee Benefits

Provision is made for the Shire of Menzies's obligations for short-term employee benefits. Short-term employee benefits are benefits (other than termination benefits) that are expected to be settled wholly before 12 months after the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the related service, including wages, salaries and sick leave. Short-term employee benefits are measured at the (undiscounted) amounts expected to be paid when the obligation is settled.

The Shire of Menzies's obligations for short-term employee benefits such as wages, salaries and sick leave are recognised as a part of current trade and other payables in the net current funding position. Shire of Menzies's current obligations for employees' annual leave and long service leave entitlements are recognised as provisions in the net current funding position.

Other long-term employee benefits

Long-term employee benefits provisions are measured at the present value of the expected future payments to be made to employees. Expected future payments incorporate anticipated future wage and salary levels, durations of service and employee departures and are discounted at rates determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have maturity dates that approximate the terms of the obligations. Any remeasurements for changes in assumptions of obligations for other long-term employee benefits are recognised in profit or loss in the periods in which the changes occur.

The Shire of Menzies's obligations for long-term employee benefits where the Shire of Menzies does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period, are presented as current provisions in the net current funding position.

SHIRE OF MENZIES NOTES TO THE REVIEW OF THE ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

PRE	DICTED VARIANCES	Variance \$	
4.1	Revenue from operating activities Grants, subsidies and contributions Increase in Main Roads WA direct grant received. Decrease in Financial Assistance Grants Scheme (FAGS) funding, as budgted was higher than actually received.	(111,755)	•
4.2	Fees and charges Increase to GROH rental fees and private works income.	25,795	A
4.3	Interest revenue Instalment interest and interest earnings on municipal investments actual receipts higher than budgeted.	38,000	A
4.4	Other revenue Revenue received from AngloGold for area promotions. Increase to reimbursements for workers compensation and other and 18-28 Brown Street.	71,964	•
4.5	Profit on asset disposals CEO vehicle replacement no longer required.	(9,333)	•
4.6	Expenditure from operating activities Employee costs Increase expenditure for Governance employee costs, Fire Shed, Housing, Parks and Gardens, Private Works, FBT and Workers Compensation. Decrease expenditure for Welfare employee costs and public convenience operations.	(123,914)	•
4.7	Materials and contracts	(83,000)	•
	Increase expenditure audit fees, vehicle expenses, consultancy strategic, legal expenses, housing, bin purchases, private works, website upgrade, subscriptions, OPS consultants, training and development, information technology.		
	Decrease expenditure consulting fees rates, information systems, Nurse expenses, consultancy sanitation, public convenience maintenance, Christmas events, contract building services.		
4.8	Other expenditure Increase expenditure for Tjuntjunjara Community Programs & Events - Desert Star.	(10,500)	•
	Non-cash amounts excluded from operating activities Profit on asset disposal no longer proceeding.	9,333	A
4.10	Inflows from investing activities Capital grants, subsidies and contributions Increase to budgets for LRCI funding grants actually received.	191,482	A
4.11	Proceeds from disposal of assets CEO vehicle replacement no longer required.	(60,000)	•
4.12	Outflows from investing activities Purchase of land and buildings Increase expenditure Reid St, Lady Shenton, Goongarrie Cottage South, 18-28 Brown Street. Decrease expenditure Duplex 12A, fencing Walsh St, Town Hall, Caravan Park, Goongarrie Cottage North. Decrease and carry over to 25/26 budget - CEO house, Mercer St, Duplex 12B.	196,500	A
4.13	Purchase of plant and equipment Increase expenditure for air compressor. Decrease expenditure vehicles CDM and CFO. Decrease and carry over to 25/26 budget - CEO vehicle.	115,000	A
4.14	Purchase and construction of infrastructure-roads Increase expenditure to Kookynie - Malcolm Road (RRG)	(10,000)	•
4.15	Purchase and construction of infrastructure-other Increase expenditure LRCI Skatepark, LRCI Kensington Street, TV and Radio rebroadcasting equipment.	(100,000)	•

SHIRE OF MENZIES NOTES TO THE REVIEW OF THE ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

4	PREDICTED VARIANCES		Variance	
			\$	
		Cash inflows from financing activities		
	4.16	Transfers from reserve accounts	(130,000)	\blacksquare
		CEO vehicle replacement no longer required and decrease in budgted Town Hall capital works.		
		Cash outflows from financing activities		
	4.17	Transfers to reserve accounts	79,980	
		Plant reserve transfer.		
	4.18	Surplus or deficit after imposition of general rates	89,552	A
		Difference between adopted 2024/25 budget and the closing balance of the 2023/24 audited statements.		

6.2	Compliance Audit	lit Return 2024				
LOCATION		Not applicable				
APPLICANT		Internal				
DOCUMENT REF		NAM1424				
DATE OF REPORT		17 February 2025				
AUTHOR		Chief Financial Officer, Kristy Van Kuyl				
RESPONS	BLE OFFICER	Acting Chief Executive Officer, Peter Bentley				
OFFICER INTEREST	DISCLOSURE OF	Nil				
ATTACHM	ENT	1. Compliance Audit Return 2024 [6.2.1 - 12 pages]				

SUMMARY:

Each year, the Council is required to complete an Annual Compliance Audit Return (CAR) for the calendar year immediately preceding (1 January to 31 December) as published by the Department of Local Government Sport and Cultural Industries (DLGSCI). The Compliance Audit Return is then to be reviewed by the Audit and Risk Committee and a report presented to Council prior to the adoption of the CAR.

BACKGROUND:

This year, the CAR was reviewed and completed by Moore Australia. Tanya Browning, Director, Local Government Services from Moore Australia attended the Shire offices from 23 to 24 January 2025, during which time the CAR was completed through interviews with senior staff and the inspection of various documents and records including:

- · Minute Books
- Tender Register
- Financial Interest and Return Register
- Complaints Register
- Delegations Register
- · Council's Website

The CAR is one of the tools that allow the Council to monitor how the organisation is functioning regarding compliance with the *Local Government Act 1995* and provides the Audit and Risk Committee the opportunity to report to the Council any cases of non-compliance or where full compliance was not achieved.

This process also provides an opportunity for the Audit and Risk Committee to consider matters that may require further review within ongoing risk framework assessments and actions.

COMMENT:

Through the completion of the 2024 CAR, there were two instances of non-compliance noted. One instance related to procurement under \$250,000. It was noted with management it is very difficult to declare during the review period the appropriate number of quotations had been obtained for every purchase (particularly low value purchases) in accordance with the purchasing policy and some non compliances were noted with auditors during the 2023-24 audit. Whilst systems and processes are in place in an effort to maintain compliance with the purchasing policy, it is impossible to certify compliance in every instance without a complete examination of all purchases.

Another instance of non compliance related to the statewide public notice for an invitation to tender in accordance with legislation. Updates to systems and processes have been implemented to tender checklists to ensure future compliance.

A summary of matters noted during the completion of the 2024 Compliance Audit Return (CAR) is attached for information. The attached summary also notes general improvement opportunities to systems and processes identified through the completion of the Compliance Audit Return (CAR). These improvements may assist the Shire in its risk management activities and continual improvement of administrative and compliance functions.

CONSULTATION:

Moore Australia, Consultants

STATUTORY AUTHORITY:

Regulation 14 of the Local Government (Audit) Regulations 1996 provides:

- (1) A local government is to carry out a compliance audit for the period 1 January to 31 December in each year.
- (2) After carrying out a compliance audit the local government is to prepare a compliance audit return in a form approved by the Minister.
- (3A) The local government's audit committee is to review the compliance audit return and is to report to the council the results of that review.
- (3) After the audit committee has reported to the council under subregulation (3A), the compliance audit return is to be
 - (a) presented to the council at a meeting of the council; and
 - (b) adopted by the council; and
 - (c) recorded in the minutes of the meeting at which it is adopted

Regulation 14 of the *Local Government (Audit) Regulations 1996* details the requirements with regard to certifying the CAR and issuing to the Departmental CEO

Section 7.13(1)(i) of the *Local Government Act 1995* refers to the provisions within regulations with regard to audits.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:

There are no policy implications resulting from the recommendation of this report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:

There are no financial implications resulting from the recommendation of this report.

RISK ASSESSMENT:

Risk Statement	Level of Risk	Risk Mitigation Strategy
This item has been evaluated against the Shire's Risk Management Strategy, Risk Assessment Matrix.	•	Implementation of improvements as noted in attached summary.

STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS:

The Shire's Strategic Community Plan 2021-2031 outlines the following Outcome and Strategy:

The Shire's Strategic Community Plan 2021-2031 outlines the following Outcomes and Strategies:

Outcomes

- 4.1 A strategically focused Council., leading our community
- 4.2 An efficient and effective organisation.

Strategies:

- 4.1.1 Provide strategic leadership and governance
- 4.2.1 Maintain a high level of corporate governance, responsibility and accountability.

Accordingly, the officer's recommendation aligns with the Strategic Community Plan.

VOTING REQUIREMENTS:

Simple Majority

OFFICER RECOMMENDATION/COMMITTEE DECISION:

Committee Resolution Number: ARC-71

Moved: Cr A Tucker Seconded: Cr P Warner

That it be a recommendation to the Council:

That:

- 1. The attached Compliance Audit Return for 2024 be adopted
- 2. The Shire President and Chief Executive Officer be authorised to sign the Compliance Audit Return 2024 for submission to the Department of Local Government, Sport and Cultural Industries.

Carried	2 / 0
---------	-------

For: Cr P Warner and Cr A Tucker

Against: Nil



Menzies – Compliance Audit Return

No	Reference	Question	Response	Comments
1	s3.59(2)(a) F&G Regs 7,9,10	Has the local government prepared a business plan for each major trading undertaking that was not exempt in 2024?	N/A	
2	s3.59(2)(b) F&G Regs 7,8A, 8, 10	Has the local government prepared a business plan for each major land transaction that was not exempt in 2024?	N/A	
3	s3.59(2)(c) F&G Regs 7,8A, 8,10	Has the local government prepared a business plan before entering into each land transaction that was preparatory to entry into a major land transaction in 2024?	N/A	
4	s3.59(4)	Has the local government complied with public notice and publishing requirements for each proposal to commence a major trading undertaking or enter into a major land transaction or a land transaction that is preparatory to a major land transaction for 2024?	N/A	
5	s3.59(5)	During 2024, did the council resolve to proceed with each major land transaction or trading undertaking by absolute majority?	N/A	

Delegation of Power/Duty					
No	Reference	Question	Response	Comments	
1	s5.16 (1)	Were all delegations to committees resolved by absolute majority?	N/A	Committees have no delegated authority	
2	s5.16 (2)	Were all delegations to committees in writing?	N/A		
3	s5.17	Were all delegations to committees within the limits specified in section 5.17 of the Local Government Act 1995?	N/A		
4	s5.18	Were all delegations to committees recorded in a register of delegations?	N/A		
5	s5.18	Has council reviewed delegations to its committees in the 2023/2024 financial year?	N/A		
6	s5.42(1) & s5.43 Admin Reg 18G	Did the powers and duties delegated to the CEO exclude those listed in section 5.43 of the Local Government Act 1995?	Yes		



7	s5.42(1)	Were all delegations to the CEO resolved by an absolute majority?	Yes	Item 14.2.1 OCM 29/02/2024
8	s5.42(2)	Were all delegations to the CEO in writing?	Yes	Item 14.2.1 OCM 29/02/2024
9	s5.44(2)	Were all delegations by the CEO to any employee in writing?	Yes	
10	s5.16(3)(b) & s5.45(1)(b)	Were all decisions by the Council to amend or revoke a delegation made by absolute majority?	Yes	Item 14.2.1 OCM 29/02/2024
11	s5.46(1)	Has the CEO kept a register of all delegations made under Division 4 of the Act to the CEO and to employees?	Yes	
12	s5.46(2)	Were all delegations made under Division 4 of the Act reviewed by the delegator at least once during the 2023/2024 financial year?	Yes	Item 14.2.1 OCM 29/02/2024
13	s5.46(3) Admin Reg 19	Did all persons exercising a delegated power or duty under the Act keep, on all occasions, a written record in accordance with Local Government (Administration) Regulations 1996, regulation 19?	Yes	

Disclosure of Interest					
No	Reference	Question	Response	Comments	
1	s5.67	Where a council member disclosed an interest in a matter and did not have participation approval under sections 5.68 or 5.69 of the Local Government Act 1995, did the council member ensure that they did not remain present to participate in discussion or decision making relating to the matter?	Yes		
2	s5.68(2) & s5.69(5) Admin Reg 21A	Were all decisions regarding participation approval, including the extent of participation allowed and, where relevant, the information required by the Local Government (Administration) Regulations 1996 regulation 21A, recorded in the minutes of the relevant council or committee meeting?	N/A	No instances were noted during the reporting period where council members remained at the meeting	
3	s5.73	Were disclosures under sections 5.65, 5.70 or 5.71A(3) of the Local Government Act 1995 recorded in the minutes of the meeting at which the disclosures were made?	Yes		
4	s5.75 Admin Reg 22, Form 2	Was a primary return in the prescribed form lodged by all relevant persons within three months of their start day?	Yes		
5	s5.76 Admin Reg 23, Form 3	Was an annual return in the prescribed form lodged by all relevant persons by 31 August 2024?	Yes		



6	s5.77	On receipt of a primary or annual return, did the CEO, or the Mayor/President, give written acknowledgment of having received the return?	Yes	
7	s5.88(1) & (2)(a)	Did the CEO keep a register of financial interests which contained the returns lodged under sections 5.75 and 5.76 of the Local Government Act 1995?	Yes	
8	s5.88(1) & (2)(b) Admin Reg 28	Did the CEO keep a register of financial interests which contained a record of disclosures made under sections 5.65, 5.70, 5.71 and 5.71A of the Local Government Act 1995, in the form prescribed in the Local Government (Administration) Regulations 1996, regulation 28?	Yes	
9	s5.88(3)	When a person ceased to be a person required to lodge a return under sections 5.75 and 5.76 of the Local Government Act 1995, did the CEO remove from the register all returns relating to that person?	Yes	
10	s5.88(4)	Have all returns removed from the register in accordance with section 5.88(3) of the Local Government Act 1995 been kept for a period of at least five years after the person who lodged the return(s) ceased to be a person required to lodge a return?	Yes	
11	s5.89A(1), (2) & (3) Admin Reg 28A	Did the CEO keep a register of gifts which contained a record of disclosures made under sections 5.87A and 5.87B of the Local Government Act 1995, in the form prescribed in the Local Government (Administration) Regulations 1996, regulation 28A?	Yes	
12	s5.89A(5) & (5A)	Did the CEO publish an up-to-date version of the gift register on the local government's website?	Yes	
13	s5.89A(6)	When people cease to be a person who is required to make a disclosure under section 5.87A or 5.87B of the Local Government Act 1995, did the CEO remove from the register all records relating to those people?	Yes	
14	s5.89A(7)	Have copies of all records removed from the register under section 5.89A(6) of the Local Government Act 1995 been kept for a period of at least five years after the person ceases to be a person required to make a disclosure?	N/A	
15	s5.70(2) & (3)	Where an employee had an interest in any matter in respect of which the employee provided advice or a report directly to council or a committee, did that person disclose the nature and extent of that interest when giving the advice or report?	Yes	



16	s5.71A & s5.71B(5)	Where council applied to the Minister to allow the CEO to provide advice or a report to which a disclosure under section 5.71A(1) of the Local Government Act 1995 relates, did the application include details of the nature of the interest disclosed and any other information required by the Minister for the purposes of the application?	N/A	
17	s5.71B(6) & s5.71B(7)	Was any decision made by the Minister under section 5.71B(6) of the Local Government Act 1995, recorded in the minutes of the council meeting at which the decision was considered?	N/A	
18	s5.104(1)	Did the local government prepare and adopt, by absolute majority, a code of conduct to be observed by council members, committee members candidates that incorporates the model code of conduct?	Yes	Item 13.2.7 OCM 25/07/2024
19	s5.104(3) & (4)	Did the local government adopt additional requirements in addition to the model code of conduct? If yes, does it comply with section 5.104(3) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1995?	N/A	
20	s5.104(7)	Has the CEO published an up-to-date version of the code of conduct for council members, committee members and candidates on the local government's website?	Yes	
21	s5.51A(1) & (3)	Has the CEO prepared and implemented a code of conduct to be observed by employees of the local government? If yes, has the CEO published an up-to-date version of the code of conduct for employees on the local government's website?	Yes	

Disp	Disposal of Property				
No	Reference	Question	Response	Comments	
1	s3.58(3)	Where the local government disposed of property other than by public auction or tender, did it dispose of the property in accordance with section 3.58(3) of the Local Government Act 1995 (unless section 3.58(5) applies)?	N/A		
2	s3.58(4)	Where the local government disposed of property under section 3.58(3) of the Local Government Act 1995, did it provide details, as prescribed by section 3.58(4), in the required local public notice for each disposal of property?	N/A		



Elect	Elections			
No	Reference	Question	Response	Comments
1	Elect Regs 30G(1) & (2)	Did the CEO establish and maintain an electoral gift register and ensure that all disclosure of gifts forms completed by candidates and donors and received by the CEO were placed on the electoral gift register at the time of receipt by the CEO and in a manner that clearly identifies and distinguishes the forms relating to each candidate in accordance with regulations 30G(1) and 30G(2) of the Local Government (Elections) Regulations 1997?	Yes	
2	Elect Regs 30G(3) & (4)	Did the CEO remove any disclosure of gifts forms relating to an unsuccessful candidate, or a successful candidate that completed their term of office, from the electoral gift register, and retain those forms separately for a period of at least two years in accordance with regulation 30G(4) of the Local Government (Elections) Regulations 1997?	N/A	
3	Elect Regs 30G(5) & (6)	Did the CEO publish an up-to-date version of the electoral gift register on the local government's official website in accordance with regulation 30G(5) of the Local Government (Elections) Regulations 1997?	Yes	

Finance				
No	Reference	Question	Response	Comments
1	s7.1A	Has the local government established an audit committee and appointed members by absolute majority in accordance with section 7.1A of the Local Government Act 1995?	Yes	Item 14.2.1 OCM 3 November 2023
2	s7.1B	Where the council delegated to its audit committee any powers or duties under Part 7 of the Local Government Act 1995, did it do so by absolute majority?	N/A	No delegation to committees.
3	s7.9(1)	Was the auditor's report for the financial year ended 30 June 2024 received by the local government by 31 December 2024?	Yes	Received 6 November 2024



4	s7.12A(3)	Where the local government determined that matters raised in the auditor's report prepared under section 7.9(1) of the Local Government Act 1995 required action to be taken, did the local government ensure that appropriate action was undertaken in respect of those matters?	N/A	
5	s7.12A(4)(a) & (4)(b)	Where matters identified as significant were reported in the auditor's report, did the local government prepare a report that stated what action the local government had taken or intended to take with respect to each of those matters? Was a copy of the report given to the Minister within three months of the audit report being received by the local government?	N/A	No matters identified as significant in the Auditor's report.
6	s7.12A(5)	Within 14 days after the local government gave a report to the Minister under section 7.12A(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1995, did the CEO publish a copy of the report on the local government's official website?	N/A	
7	Audit Reg 10(1)	Was the auditor's report for the financial year ending 30 June 2024 received by the local government within 30 days of completion of the audit?	Yes	

Local Government Employees				
No	Reference	Question	Response	Comments
1	s5.36(4) & s5.37(3) Admin Reg 18A	Were all CEO and/or senior employee vacancies advertised in accordance with Local Government (Administration) Regulations 1996, regulation 18A?	N/A	
2	Admin Reg 18E	Was all information provided in applications for the position of CEO true and accurate?	N/A	
3	Admin Reg 18F	Was the remuneration and other benefits paid to a CEO on appointment the same remuneration and benefits advertised for the position under section 5.36(4) of the Local Government Act 1995?	N/A	
4	s5.37(2)	Did the CEO inform council of each proposal to employ or dismiss senior employee?	N/A	
5	s5.37(2)	Where council rejected a CEO's recommendation to employ or dismiss a senior employee, did it inform the CEO of the reasons for doing so?	N/A	



Official Conduct				
No	Reference	Question	Response	Comments
1	s5.120	Has the local government designated an employee to be its complaints officer?	N/A	CEO is the complaints officer
2	s5.121(1) & (2)	Has the complaints officer for the local government maintained a register of complaints which records all complaints that resulted in a finding under section 5.110(2)(a) of the Local Government Act 1995?	Yes	
3	S5.121(2)	Does the complaints register include all information required by section 5.121(2) of the Local Government Act 1995?	Yes	
4	s5.121(3)	Has the CEO published an up-to-date version of the register of the complaints on the local government's official website?	Yes	

No	Reference	Question	Response	Comments
1	F&G Reg 11A(1) & (3)	Did the local government comply with its current purchasing policy, adopted under the Local Government (Functions and General) Regulations 1996, regulations 11A(1) and (3) in relation to the supply of goods or services where the consideration under the contract was, or was expected to be, \$250,000 or less or worth \$250,000 or less?	No	Cannot guarantee compliance has occurred with all purchasing activities below \$250,000. Interim and final audit noted some minor instances of non compliance may exist. Systems being monitored to minimise risk of non compliance.
2	s3.57 F&G Reg 11	Subject to Local Government (Functions and General) Regulations 1996, regulation 11(2), did the local government invite tenders for all contracts for the supply of goods or services where the consideration under the contract was, or was expected to be, worth more than the consideration stated in regulation 11(1) of the Regulations?	Yes	
3	F&G Regs 11(1), 12(2), 13, & 14(1), (3), and (4)	When regulations 11(1), 12(2) or 13 of the Local Government Functions and General) Regulations 1996, required tenders to be publicly invited, did the local government invite tenders via Statewide public notice in accordance with Regulation 14(3) and (4)?	No	RFT 01-24 was not via statewide public notice as prescribed by regulations.



4	F&G Reg 12	Did the local government comply with Local Government (Functions and General) Regulations 1996, Regulation 12 when deciding to enter into multiple contracts rather than a single contract?	N/A	
5	F&G Reg 14(5)	If the local government sought to vary the information supplied to tenderers, was every reasonable step taken to give each person who sought copies of the tender documents, or each acceptable tenderer notice of the variation?	N/A	
6	F&G Regs 15 & 16	Did the local government's procedure for receiving and opening tenders comply with the requirements of Local Government (Functions and General) Regulations 1996, Regulation 15 and 16?	Yes	
7	F&G Reg 17	Did the information recorded in the local government's tender register comply with the requirements of the Local Government (Functions and General) Regulations 1996, Regulation 17 and did the CEO make the tenders register available for public inspection and publish it on the local government's official website?	Yes	
8	F&G Reg 18(1)	Did the local government reject any tenders that were not submitted at the place, and within the time, specified in the invitation to tender?	N/A	
9	F&G Reg 18(4)	Were all tenders that were not rejected assessed by the local government via a written evaluation of the extent to which each tender satisfies the criteria for deciding which tender to accept?	Yes	
10	F&G Reg 19	Did the CEO give each tenderer written notice containing particulars of the successful tender or advising that no tender was accepted?	Yes	
11	F&G Regs 21 & 22	Did the local government's advertising and expression of interest processes comply with the requirements of the Local Government (Functions and General) Regulations 1996, Regulations 21 and 22?	N/A	
12	F&G Reg 23(1) & (2)	Did the local government reject any expressions of interest that were not submitted at the place, and within the time, specified in the notice or that failed to comply with any other requirement specified in the notice?	N/A	
13	F&G Reg 23(3) & (4)	Were all expressions of interest that were not rejected under the Local Government (Functions and General) Regulations 1996, Regulation 23(1) & (2) assessed by the local government? Did the CEO list each person as an acceptable tenderer?	N/A	



14	F&G Reg 24	Did the CEO give each person who submitted an expression of interest a notice in writing of the outcome in accordance with Local Government (Functions and General) Regulations 1996, Regulation 24?	N/A	
15	F&G Regs 24AD(2) & (4) and 24AE	Did the local government invite applicants for a panel of pre-qualified suppliers via Statewide public notice in accordance with Local Government (Functions & General) Regulations 1996 regulations 24AD(4) and 24AE?	N/A	
16	F&G Reg 24AD(6)	If the local government sought to vary the information supplied to the panel, was every reasonable step taken to give each person who sought detailed information about the proposed panel or each person who submitted an application notice of the variation?	N/A	
17	F&G Reg 24AF	Did the local government's procedure for receiving and opening applications to join a panel of pre-qualified suppliers comply with the requirements of Local Government (Functions and General) Regulations 1996, Regulation 16, as if the reference in that regulation to a tender were a reference to a prequalified supplier panel application?	N/A	
18	F&G Reg 24AG	Did the information recorded in the local government's tender register about panels of pre-qualified suppliers comply with the requirements of Local Government (Functions and General) Regulations 1996, Regulation 24AG?	N/A	
19	F&G Reg 24AH(1)	Did the local government reject any applications to join a panel of prequalified suppliers that were not submitted at the place, and within the time, specified in the invitation for applications?	N/A	
20	F&G Reg 24AH(3)	Were all applications that were not rejected assessed by the local government via a written evaluation of the extent to which each application satisfies the criteria for deciding which application to accept?	N/A	
21	F&G Reg 24AI	Did the CEO send each applicant written notice advising them of the outcome of their application?	N/A	
22	F&G Regs 24E & 24F	Where the local government gave regional price preference, did the local government comply with the requirements of Local Government (Functions and General) Regulations 1996, Regulation 24E and 24F?	Yes	Policy 4.3 provides



No	Reference	Question	Response	Comments
1	Admin Reg 19C	Has the local government adopted by absolute majority a strategic community plan? If Yes, please provide the adoption date or the date of the most recent review in the Comments section?	Yes	27/06/2024 Minor review Item 13.1.1 OCM 27/06/2024
2	Admin Reg 19DA(1) & (4)	Has the local government adopted by absolute majority a corporate business plan? If Yes, please provide the adoption date or the date of the most recent review in the Comments section?	Yes	27/06/2024 Item 13.1.2 OCM 27/06/2024
3	Admin Reg 19DA(2) & (3)	Does the corporate business plan comply with the requirements of Local Government (Administration) Regulations 1996 19DA(2) & (3)?	Yes	

No	Reference	Question	Response	Comments
1	Financial Management Reg 5(2)(c)	Did the CEO review the appropriateness and effectiveness of the local government's financial management systems and procedures in accordance with the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996 regulations 5(2)(c) within the three financial years prior to 31 December 2024? If yes, please provide the date of council's resolution to accept the report.	Yes	21/12/2021 Item 6.3 ARC Meeting decision ARC-15 & Item 12.1.3 OMC 21/12/2021 resolution CM-121
2	Audit Reg 17	Did the CEO review the appropriateness and effectiveness of the local government's systems and procedures in relation to risk management, internal control and legislative compliance in accordance with Local Government (Audit) Regulations 1996 regulation 17 within the three financial years prior to 31 December 2024? If yes, please provide date of council's resolution to accept the report.	Yes	21/12/2021 Item 6.3 ARC Meeting decision ARC-15 & Item 12.1.3 OMC 21/12/2021 resolution CM-121
3	s5.87C	Where a disclosure was made under sections 5.87A or 5.87B of the Local Government Act 1995, were the disclosures made within 10 days after receipt	N/A	No gifts recorded



		of the gift? Did the disclosure include the information required by section 5.87C of the Act?		
4	s5.90A(2) & (5)	Did the local government prepare, adopt by absolute majority and publish an up-to-date version on the local government's website, a policy dealing with the attendance of council members and the CEO at events?	Yes	Item 14.2.9 OMC 3/11/2023
5	s5.96A(1), (2), (3) & (4)	Did the CEO publish information on the local government's website in accordance with sections 5.96A(1), (2), (3), and (4) of the Local Government Act 1995?	Yes	
6	s5.128(1)	Did the local government prepare and adopt (by absolute majority) a policy in relation to the continuing professional development of council members?	Yes	Item 14.2.10 OMC 3/11/2023
7	s5.127	Did the local government prepare a report on the training completed by council members in the 2023/2024 financial year and publish it on the local government's official website by 31 July 2024?	Yes	
8	s6.4(3)	By 30 September 2024, did the local government submit to its auditor the balanced accounts and annual financial report for the year ending 30 June 2024?	Yes	Submitted to the auditor on 24/09/2024
9	s.6.2(3)	When adopting the annual budget, did the local government take into account all its expenditure, revenue and income?	Yes	

Chief Executive Officer	Date
Mayor/President	Date

Department of Local Government, Sport and Cultural Industries - Compliance Audit Return - Menzies



7 INFORMATION REPORTS Nil 8 MOTIONS OF WHICH PREVIOUS NOTICE HAS BEEN GIVEN Nil

9 NEW BUSINESS OF AN URGENT NATURE

9	Consideration of Late Items		
LOCATION		Not Applicable	
APPLICANT		Internal	
DOCUMENT	REF	NAM1448	
DATE OF REPORT		26 February 2025	
AUTHOR		Executive Officer, Maureen Yulo-Uy	
RESPONSIBLE OFFICER		Acting Chief Executive Officer, Peter Bentley	
DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST		Nil	
ATTACHMEN	IT	Nil	

SUMMARY:

The purpose of this report is for the Audit and Risk Committee to approve consideration of one late item of an urgent nature.

BACKGROUND:

A late item should not be considered at committee meetings unless the matter is of an urgent nature.

The Shire of Menzies Meeting Procedures Local Law Part 5 – Business of a Meeting Part 5.4 provides for the introduction of business of an urgent nature.

COMMENT:

The supplementary report requires urgent consideration to inform the Audit and Risk Committee of the Shire's risk update and risk mitigation strategy. The next Audit and Risk Committee meeting is scheduled for June 2025, which may be too far off to provide the necessary update to the committee.

CONSULTATION:

Nil

STATUTORY AUTHORITY:

Shire of Menzies Meeting Procedure Local Law 2021: Part 5 clause 5.4 New business of an urgent nature

- 1. In cases of urgency or other special circumstances, matters may, on a motion by the presiding member that is carried by the meeting, be raised without notice and decided by the meeting.
- 2. In subclause (1), 'cases of urgency or other special circumstances' means matters that have arisen after the preparation of the agenda that are considered by the presiding member to be of such importance and urgency that they are unable to be dealt with administratively by the local government and must be considered and dealt with by the Council before the next meeting.

POL	ICY	IMPL	ICAT	TIONS:
-----	-----	------	------	--------

No Council policy is applicable.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:

Nil

RISK ASSESSMENT:

Nil

STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS:

The Shire's Strategic Community Plan 2021-2031 outlines the following Strategy and Outcome:

- 4.2 An efficient and effective organisation.
- 4.2.1 Maintain a high level of corporate governance, responsibility and accountability.

Accordingly, the officer's recommendation aligns with the Strategic Community Plan.

VOTING REQUIREMENTS:

Simple Majority

OFFICER RECOMMENDATION/COMMITTEE DECISION:

Committee Resolution Number	ARC-72
-----------------------------	--------

Moved Cr A Tucker Seconded Cr P Warner

That Item 9.1 Risk Management Update – February 2025 be accepted as 'urgent business'.

Carried 2 / 0

For: Cr P Warner and Cr A Tucker

Against: Nil

9.1	Risk Managemen	t Update - February 2025		
LOCATION		Not Applicable		
APPLICAN'	Т	Internal		
DOCUMEN	T REF	NAM1447		
DATE OF R	REPORT	26 February 2025		
AUTHOR		Moore Australia, Tanya Browning		
RESPONSI	BLE OFFICER	Acting Chief Executive Officer, Peter Bentley		
DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST		Nil		
ATTACHME	ENT	 CONFIDENTIAL - Draft Risk Updates Summary February 2025 [15.1.1 - 2 pages] CONFIDENTIAL - Draft Risk Register February 2025 [15.1.2 - 3 pages] 		

SUMMARY:

To present the summary of organisational risk management activities from December 2024 to February 2025.

BACKGROUND:

From 1 July 2022, the Shire of Menzies sought proposals through Vendor Panel from external consultants for compliance and governance services, which included risk management support services. Moore Australia (WA) were successful with their proposal and have been engaged to provide compliance and risk management support services for 2022, 2023 and 2024.

The Shire's Risk Management Strategy, as previously reviewed by the Audit and Risk Committee, and the Shire's risk management policy (previously adopted by Council) align to AS/NZS ISO 31000:2018 Risk Management Guidelines. The Risk Management Strategy is prepared utilising the Principles, Framework and Process as defined within the standard, considers the context of the Shire and conforms to the requirements of the standard by providing the necessary guidance and direction to be followed by the Shire in its risk management activities, aligned to the risk management policy.

The guidance and direction within the Risk Management Strategy includes the assessment, prioritisation and communication of risk. This includes the reporting of risks through the Audit and Risk Committee. The reporting of risk management activities historically occurred through quarterly 'dashboard reports', bi-annual 'summary reports' and an annual 'risk control assurance workshop', which will continue through the Shire's current engagement with Moore Australia.

Workshops held onsite to date with Shire of Menzies staff have occurred in November 2022, August 2023, May 2024 and December 2024 to review risk profiles, controls, consider emerging or new risks as well as to set out planned control assurance activities for the year. Following these workshops, updates to the risk profiles were made, and the risk register populated with updated information to be reported to the Audit and Risk

Committee. Further site visits were undertaken in February 2023, November 2023 (as well as an offsite workshop in November 2023), January 2024, September 2024 and February 2025 where risk management activities were considered and reviewed.

These activities continue to form the foundation for risk management activities to be reported and monitored through the Audit and Risk Committee.

COMMENT:

An onsite workshop was held on 25 February 2025 with Moore Australia and available Shire staff to review and update the risk profiles and controls, and to document updates since the last workshop to report on the progress of planned control assurance activities for the year. Following the workshop, updates to the risk profile documents were made, and the risk register populated with updated information to be reported to the Audit and Risk Committee.

This report provides a summary of the changes to the risk profiles and risk register following the workshop and enables analysis of what has changed for the organisation, and whether these changes result in new or emerging risks against each risk profile. This subsequently allows for the risk register to be updated, and to summarise new risks or changes to existing risks for Committee information and consideration. The risk summary report highlighting risk changes identified against each profile, including actions and treatments in place for high level risks has been circulated to Committee members separately.

A quarterly dashboard report has been prepared for committee information to summarise the current number of reportable risks, unaddressed high-level risks, total new risks etc. The table below highlights the progress risk movements this quarter.

Risk Category	No. of High or Extreme Rated Risks Identified	No. of High or Extreme Rated Risks after Treatment	No. of New Risks Identified (February 2025)	No. of Risk Closed (February 2025)
Performance	3	1	0	0
Environmental	2	2	0	0
Reputational Damage	2	1	0	0
Financial	4	1	0	0
Legislative / Regulatory / Policy/ Occupational Safety and Health	4	3	0	0
Service Delivery / Business Interruption	4	3	0	0

The actions identified through the risk workshops and assessment of the controls and treatments in place for identified risks outline the progress the Shire has made to address the risks identified.

Discussions with Moore Australia as well as future site visits to 30 June 2025 will be undertaken to further update risk profiles, actions and treatments for the next reporting period. This includes new and/or emerging risks noted in the workshop held in February 2025. These reports will be updated for the next meeting for committee information.

The supporting documents are not circulated with agenda documents, as they include the controls to be implemented / actioned by the Shire in an effort to reduce risk levels. Publication of such information may adversely impact on risk management activities.

CONSULTATION:

Moore Australia, Consultants Shire of Menzies Executive Team

STATUTORY AUTHORITY:

Regulation 17.1 of the *Local Government (Audit) Regulations 1996* requires the CEO to monitor the appropriateness and effectiveness of systems and procedures in regard to risk management, internal control and legislative compliance.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:

The Risk Management Policy outlines the Shire's commitment and approach to managing risks impacting on day-to-day operations and the delivery of strategic objectives.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:

Provision is included in the 2024-25 Adopted Budget for Moore Australia to deliver compliance and governance services, including risk management support, in line with the awarded Vendor Panel RFQ.

RISK ASSESSMENT:

Risk Statement	Level of Risk	Risk Mitigation Strategy
This item has been evaluated against	The perceived	The progression of risk
the Shire of Menzies' Risk	level of risk is high prior to treatment.	management activities
Management Strategy and Risk		aligned with the Risk
Assessment Matrix.	treatment.	Management Strategy may
		reduce the risk to low.

STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS:

One of the Council's responsibilities in risk management is to be satisfied risks are identified, managed and controlled appropriately, to achieve the Shire's strategic objectives, as well as to support the allocation of funds / resources to treat risks as required.

The Chief Executive Officer and senior staff play a key role in the establishment and development of an effective risk management framework. To ensure the successful delivery of the strategic planning objectives, the strategy requires ongoing monitoring and revision for alignment to the Plan for the Future.

One role of the audit committee is to monitor identified strategic high-level risks and treatment solutions to ensure the community receives the services delivered effectively as outlined within the Plan for the Future.

Monitoring and review activities will continue to provide evidence of the appropriateness and effectiveness of systems and procedures regarding risk management, internal control, and legislative compliance, as required by the *Local Government (Audit) Regulations 1996*. The Risk Management Strategy also provides direction for the implementation of risk management activities.

The Shire's Strategic Community Plan 2021-2031 outlines the following Outcomes and Strategies:

- 4.1 A strategically focused Council, leading our community.
- 4.1.1 Provide strategic leadership and governance.
- 4.2 An efficient and effective organisation.
- 4.2.1 Maintain a high level of corporate governance, responsibility and accountability.

Accordingly, the officer's recommendation aligns with the Strategic Community Plan.

VOTING REQUIREMENTS:

Simple Majority

OFFICER RECOMMENDATION/COMMITTEE DECISION:

Committee R	esolution Number	AR	C-73
Moved	Cr P Warner	Seconded	Cr A Tucker

That:

1. The attached drafts of Risk Register and Risk Updates Summary updated as of February 2025 be received

2. The above report updating the Risk Management activities be received.

Carried 2 / 0	
---------------	--

For: Cr P Warner and Cr A Tucker

Against: Nil

10 NEXT MEETING

The next meeting of the Audit and Risk Committee will be held on 26 June 2025 at the Council Chambers in Menzies, commencing at 10:00am.

11 CLOSURE OF MEETING

The Presiding Member declared the meeting closed at 10.12am.